

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-12

AN ORDINANCE OF WELLINGTON, FLORIDA'S COUNCIL AMENDING THE WELLINGTON CODE OF ORDINANCES, MORE SPECIFICALLY, TEXT AMENDMENTS TO MODIFY CERTAIN PROVISIONS IN CHAPTER 1 (GENERAL PROVISIONS), CHAPTER 2 (ADMINISTRATION), CHAPTER 3 (ALCHOLIC BEVERAGES), CHAPTER 9 (ENVIRONMENT), CHAPTER 11 (MORTGAGED PROPERTY REGISTRATION), CHAPTER 20 (STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PLACES), AND CHAPTER 22 (TRAFFIC & VEHICLES) AS CONTAINED HEREIN; TO FACILITATE IMPROVED EFFICIENCY FOR THE CITATION METHOD OF CODE COMPLIANCE; FOR CLARIFICATION OF PROVISIONS BY ADDING, MODIFYING, OR ELIMINATING CONFUSING LANGUAGE, INCLUDING DEFINITIONS; MODIFYING PROVISIONS TO BE CONTEMPORARY OR TO COMPLY WITH CHANGES IN STATE LAW ADOPTED DURING THE 2023 LEGISLATIVE SESSION; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Wellington Florida Council, as the governing body, pursuant to the authority vested in it by Article VIII, Section 2 of the Florida Constitution, and Chapter 166 of the Florida Statutes, is authorized and empowered to adopt and amend legislation to govern the affairs of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, Wellington adopted an updated Code of Ordinances in 2022 and recognized that periodic updates and other revisions would be necessary or beneficial to protect the life, safety and welfare of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, Wellington believes that it is in the best interest of the community to make additional modifications to the Code of Ordinances to update certain provisions to provide for greater efficiency and to make changes necessary to comply with changes in state legislation; and

WHEREAS, Wellington's Council has taken the recommendations from the Wellington staff and the comments from the public into consideration as part of the review of the proposed amendments to the Code of Ordinances that are the subject of this Ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF WELLINGTON, FLORIDA THAT:

SECTION 1. Chapter 1 of the Code of Ordinances, GENERAL PROVISIONS, is amended as follows:

Sec. 1-2, Definitions and Rules of Construction, is amended to add the following definition in alphabetical order:

Law Enforcement Officer: The term "Law Enforcement Officer" shall mean and include those employees of the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office authorized to enforce Wellington's Codes pursuant to the Agreement for Law Enforcement Services between Wellington and the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office.

Sec. 1-11, General Penalty, is amended as follows:

- A. Whenever in this Code or in a Wellington ordinance any act is prohibited or is made or declared to be unlawful or an offense, or whenever in such Code or ordinance the doing of any act is required or the failure to do any act is declared to be unlawful, where no specific penalty is provided therefor, the violation of any such provision of this Code or of a Wellington ordinance shall be punished by a fine not exceeding \$500.00 or imprisonment for a term not exceeding 60 days, or by both such fine and imprisonment in the discretion of the judge. However, if the violation is found to be irreparable or irreversible in nature a fine not to exceed \$15,000.00 per violation may be imposed. Each day any violation of any provision of this Code or of a Wellington ordinance shall continue, shall constitute a separate offense.
- B. Whenever violation notices are issued by a Law Enforcement Officer in the form of a citation, the fine amount shall be determined by the Violations and Penalties table in Chapter 2 of this Code, unless otherwise provided in the code section being cited.
- BC. In addition to the penalties provided in this section, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this Code or of a Wellington ordinance shall be deemed a public nuisance and may be abated by Wellington, as provided by law, and each day that such condition continues shall be regarded a new and separate offense. Costs associated with Wellington abatements of safety, health and/or nuisance violations shall be invoiced to the property owner. Such invoices not paid within 30 days shall be forwarded to the Special Magistrate to be levied as a Code Enforcement-Compliance Abatement Lien. Unpaid abatement liens associated with non-homesteaded properties are subject to foreclosure.

SECTION 2. Chapter 2 of the Code of Ordinances, ADMINISTRATION, is amended as follows:

Sec. 2-1, Wellington Seal, subsection A is amended as follows:

- A. The following emblem, shown in any color, or any part thereof, ~~with or without the legend "A Great Hometown, Let us Show You",~~ or any combination of any of the components of the emblem, is hereby designated as the official seal of Wellington:



92
93 Sec. 2-18, Lobbying by Former Wellington Officers and Employees, subsection A is
94 amended as follows:
95

- 96 A. Wellington officials and employees are prohibited from representing another person or entity
97 for compensation before the Wellington Council for three (3) years following vacation of
98 office or termination of employment with Wellington. Former Wellington officers or
99 employees shall not be held in violation of this section if the officer or employee maintains a
100 relationship with an entity that is a tax-exempt organization, under Section 501(c) of the
101 Internal Revenue Code, and where the officer or employee receives no compensation.
102

103 Sec. 2-31, Definitions, is amended to add the following definition in alphabetical order:
104

105 **Law Enforcement Officer:** those employees of the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office authorized
106 to enforce Wellington's Codes pursuant to the Agreement for Law Enforcement Services between
107 Wellington and the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office.
108

109 Sec. 2-33, Wellington Attorney as Prosecutor for Wellington, is amended as follows:
110

111 The Wellington Attorney may act as prosecutor for Wellington in cases brought before the Special
112 Magistrate or in county court.
113

114 Sec. 2-38, Fines; Imposition of Liens, subsection A(1) is amended as follows:
115

- 116 1. A fine imposed pursuant to this section shall not exceed \$250 per day for a first
117 violation and shall not exceed \$500 per day for a repeat violation, and in addition,
118 may include all costs of repairs. However, if the Special Magistrate finds the violation
119 to be irreparable or irreversible in nature, it may impose a fine not to exceed
120 ~~\$5,000.00~~\$15,000.00 per violation.
121

122 Sec. 2-42, Special Magistrate, subsection B(2) is amended as follows:
123

- 124 2. If the Special Magistrate elects not to continue to serve or is removed by the Council,
125 a request for Letters of Interest (LOI) ~~shall~~may be advertised for the position.
126
127 a. The request for LOI shall give prospective applicants 30 days from the initial
128 date of publication to submit their LOI to ~~the village~~Wellington.
129
130 b. The request for LOI must include the following criteria:
131
132 i. The candidate has been admitted to the Florida Bar for a minimum
133 period of five (5) years and is a member in good standing;
134
135 ii. The candidate is willing to serve on a specific rotational schedule; and
136
137 iii. The candidate is willing to accept a specific level of compensation.
138
139 c. The request for LOI may include one (1) or more of the following criteria:
140

- i. The candidate has experience as a municipal attorney; or
 - ii. The candidate has experience interpreting and applying municipal codes.
- d. Upon the conclusion of the 30 days set forth in this chapter, a selection committee shall be formed to review the candidate submissions and rank the applications consistent with the policies outlined in the Purchasing and Procurement Manual. The selection committee shall submit the five (5) highest ranked candidates to Wellington's Council for final selection. Neither the Village Manager, Wellington's Attorney, the Code Compliance Manager, nor the Code Compliance staff may serve on a selection committee.

Sec. 2-45, Notice, is amended as follows:

Prior to issuing a citation, a Code Compliance Officer shall provide written notice to the person who has committed a violation of a code or ordinance and shall establish a reasonable time period within which the person must correct the violation. Such time period shall be no fewer than five (5) days and no more than 30 days. If, upon personal investigation, a Code Compliance Officer finds that the person has not corrected the violation within the time period allowed, the Code Compliance Officer may issue a citation to the person who has committed the violation. A Code Compliance Officer does not have to provide the person with a reasonable time period to correct the violation prior to issuing a citation and may immediately issue a citation if a repeat violation is found or if the Code Compliance Officer has reason to believe that the violation presents a serious threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, or if the violation is irreparable or irreversible. Further, an officer may immediately issue a citation for a violation that occurs on a public right-of-way or on public property.

Sec. 2-46, Form of Citation, is amended as follows:

The citation issued by the Code ~~Enforcement~~Compliance Officer shall be in a form prescribed by Wellington and shall contain the following:

- A. The date and time of issuance;
- B. The name and address of the person to whom the citation is issued;
- C. The date and time the civil infraction was committed;
- D. The facts constituting reasonable cause;
- E. The number or section of the code or ordinance violated;
- F. The name and authority of the Code ~~Enforcement~~Compliance Officer;
- G. _The procedure for the person to follow in order to pay the civil penalty or contest the citation;
- H. The applicable civil penalty if the person elects to contest the citation;

- I. The applicable civil penalty if the person elects not to contest the citation; and
- J. A conspicuous statement if the person fails to pay the civil penalty within the time allowed, or fails to appear in court to contest the citation, the person shall be deemed to have waived their right to contest the citation and, in such case, judgment may be entered against the person for an amount up to the maximum civil penalty.

Sec. 2-47, Violations and Penalties, is amended and reorganized as follows:

All violations of the code shall be considered civil infractions with a maximum civil penalty not to exceed the amounts identified in this chapter when processed through the Special Magistrate. Certain ordinances lend themselves to be enforced by means of a citation method and, as such, Wellington has determined that the following sections of the code may be enforced through the citation method and has provided a schedule of violations and penalties to be assessed with a maximum civil penalty not to exceed \$500 as follows: Citations may be issued by a Code Compliance Officer in accordance with F.S., Ch. 162, Part II, and the Supplemental Code Compliance Procedures set forth in this Code, or by a Law Enforcement Officer in accordance with the Agreement for Law Enforcement Services between Wellington and the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office.

Class I \$50.00 Penalty	Class II \$75.00 Penalty	Class III \$125.00 Penalty	Class IV \$250.00 Penalty	Class V \$500.00 Penalty
Property Maintenance Code of Ordinances Sections <u>13-2</u> and <u>13-3</u>	Water Restrictions Code of Ordinances Section 9-28(aA)—(eL) unless due to drought conditions more stringent penalties are applicable	Failure to obtain Building Permit prior to commencement of construction <u>Code of Ordinances Building Codes Enforcement Administrative Code Section 5-2-105.1</u>	<u>Alcoholic Beverages</u> All violations of <u>Code of Ordinances Chapter 3</u>	Repeat Violations of items listed under Class I, II, III and IV
Noise Code of Ordinances Sections <u>13-57</u> and <u>13-68</u>	Solid Waste All violations of Code of Ordinances Chapter 17	Failure to obtain Local Business Tax Receipt Code of Ordinances Chapter 21, Article III	Livestock Waste BMP's* <u>Section 9-35</u> All violations of <u>Code of Ordinances Chapter 9, Article V</u>	
Prohibited Signs LDR** Section <u>7.147.9.3</u>		Failure to Obtain Special Use Permit LDR** <u>Article 5</u> , Section 5.3.9	<u>Public Assemblies</u> All violations of <u>Code of Ordinances Chapter 20, Article IV</u>	

		Failure to comply with Article 6 of the LDR** Article 6 (Zoning Districts)	Utilities All violations of Code of Ordinances Chapter 23	
			Transient (Mobile) Sales LDR** Section 6.2.2.D.2 and Table 6.2-1	
			Vegetation Removal w/o permit LDR** Section 7.7.56	
			<u>Failure to Comply with</u> Palm Beach County or <u>Wellington</u> Emergency Orders***	

* BMP = Best Management Practices for Livestock Waste

** LDR = Land Development Regulations

*** ~~Fine amounts or penalties established by County Emergency Order may be greater than Wellington penalties those set forth herein.~~

Wellington's Council may identify, by ordinance, additional violations enforced through the citation method, which shall be subject to the penalties set forth in the applicable ordinance.

SECTION 3. Chapter 3 of the Code of Ordinances, ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, is amended as follows:

Sec. 3-3, Public Possession or Consumption, subsection E is amended as follows:

- E. *Enforcement of Section:* It shall be the duty and responsibility of all appropriate law enforcement officers to enforce the provisions of this section. Any person who violates this section may be issued a citation pursuant to Chapter 2 of this Code.

Sec. 3-4, Posted Public Health Messages, subsection D is amended as follows:

- D. *Penalty for Violation of this Section:* Any person, firm, corporation, association, or agent thereof who shall violate the provisions of this section ~~shall be subject, upon conviction, may be issued a citation and subject~~ to penalties as provided in ~~section 1-11~~ Chapter 2 of this Code.

SECTION 4. Chapter 9 of the Code of Ordinances, ENVIRONMENT, is amended as follows:

Sec. 9-30, Enforcement and Penalties, is amended as follows:

238 A. ~~Enforcement:~~ Every law enforcement official having jurisdiction in the area governed by this
239 Code may, in connection with all other duties imposed by law, enforce the provisions of this
240 article by issuance of a citation, summons, or notice to appear in county court, or by filing
241 an action in civil court for injunctive relief. The Village Manager may also delegate
242 enforcement responsibility for this article to other departments of Wellington, in accordance
243 with state and local law. A person who violates the provisions of this article may be issued a
244 citation and be subject to the penalties provided in Chapter 2 of this Code. This article may
245 also be enforced by Wellington's Special Magistrate as provided in Chapter 2 of this Code.

246
247 B. ~~Penalties:~~ Any user who violates any provision of this article shall also be subject to the
248 remedies authorized by Chapter 2 of this Code, or as otherwise allowed by law.

249
250 C. ~~B.~~ In addition to the sanctions contained herein, Wellington may take appropriate action,
251 including, but not limited to, administrative action and requests for temporary and permanent
252 injunctions to enforce the provisions of this article.

253
254 **SECTION 5.** Chapter 11 of the Code of Ordinances, DEFAULTED MORTGAGED REAL
255 PROPERTY REGISTRATION, is amended as follows:

256
257 Sec. 11-4, Penalties, is amended as follows:

258
259 Unless exempted by 12 U.S.C. § 4617(a)(7), any person who violates the provisions of this chapter
260 shall, upon conviction, be punished may be issued a notice of violation and brought before
261 Wellington's Special Magistrate as provided in Chapter 42 of this Code, as applicable. In addition,
262 any violation of this chapter may be enforced by Wellington's Special Magistrate as provided in
263 Chapter 2 of this Code.

264
265 **SECTION 6.** Chapter 20 of the Code of Ordinances, STREETS, SIDEWALKS, AND OTHER
266 PUBLIC PLACES, is amended as follows:

267
268 Sec. 20-21, Vehicles over Six (6) Wheels Prohibited (Generally), is amended as follows:

269
270 **Sec. 20-21: Vehicles over Six (6) Wheels Prohibited Weight Limitations on Certain Roads**
271 **(Generally)**

272
273 A. It is unlawful to operate or permit to be operated any vehicle, or combination of vehicles and
274 trailers, ~~driving on over six (6) wheels~~ with a gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) over 16,000
275 pounds upon any Wellington road whenever said road is posted with signs prohibiting said
276 operation, except as hereinafter provided.

277
278 B. The notice of restriction shall be posted at conspicuous places at the terminal points of the
279 section of road to which the restriction applies, and at appropriate crossroads of and
280 junctions with the section of road to which the restriction applies in such a way as to provide
281 reasonable notice of the restriction.

282
283 Sec. 20-22, Exceptions, subsection A is amended as follows:

284
285 A. The ~~prohibition of vehicles over six (6) wheels~~ weight limit provided in this article shall not
286 apply to:

- 287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
1. Garbage trucks engaged in collection;
 2. Vehicles owned by any governmental entity, volunteer fire and/or ambulance company, or public utility, the unhampered operation of which is necessary to the public safety;
 3. Vehicles making deliveries of goods or services within the area served by the posted road;
 4. Recreational vehicles as defined in Article 3 of the LDR.
 5. ~~A vehicle not over six (6) wheels when towing:~~
 - a. ~~A boat trailer; or~~
 - b. ~~A cargo trailer with not more than four (4) wheels having a cargo containment area of not more than 20 feet.~~

306 Sec. 20-24, Designated Restricted Roads, is amended as follows:

307
308 The Public Works Department ~~shall~~may post signs prohibiting use of the following roads by vehicles

309 ~~driving on over six (6) wheels~~with a GVWR above 16,000 pounds:

- 310
311 A. ~~Paddock Drive~~50th Street
- 312
313 B. ~~42th Fairway~~Aero Club Drive
- 314
315 C. ~~Birkdale Drive~~Big Blue Trace
- 316
317 D. ~~50th Street South~~Binks Forest Drive
- 318
319 E. ~~Pierson Road~~Birkdale Drive
- 320
321 F. ~~Big Blue Trace~~Flying Cow Road
- 322
323 G. Forest Hill Boulevard
- 324
325 H. ~~Binks Forest Drive~~Gracida Street
- 326
327 I. ~~Flying Cow Road~~Greenbriar Boulevard
- 328
329 J. Greenview Shores Boulevard
- 330
331 K. Lake Worth Road
- 332
333 L. Ousley Farms Road
- 334
335 M. Paddock Drive

N. Pierson Road

O. South Shore Boulevard

P. Stribling Way

Q. Wellington Trace

To the extent the cooperation of other governmental entities' permission is necessary to effectuate the placement of signs, staff is directed to request such permission and coordinate with them to effect the intent on this article.

Sec. 20-36, Offenses and Penalties, subsection E is amended as follows:

E. Violations of this article shall be enforced by the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office as provided ~~under applicable law in~~ Chapter 1 of this Code.

SECTION 7. Chapter 22 of the Code of Ordinances, TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES, is amended as follows:

Sec. 22-3, Definitions, is amended to delete the definition of Enforcement Officer and to add the following definitions in alphabetical order:

~~**Enforcement Officer:** the sheriff, sheriff's deputy, their agents or employees, a police officer, the code enforcement officers and assistants, or any other person designated by law, charter, ordinance, or resolution to enforce the provisions of this chapter.~~

Code Compliance Officer: those authorized agents or employees of Wellington whose duty it is to assure code compliance.

Law Enforcement Officer: those employees of the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office authorized to enforce Wellington's Codes pursuant to the Agreement for Law Enforcement Services between Wellington and the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office.

Sec. 22-8, Enforcement, is amended as follows:

Enforcement of this article may be by Wellington ~~e~~Code Compliance Officers or ~~l~~Law eEnforcement eOfficers.

Sec. 22-10, Stopping, Standing, or Parking Prohibited in Specified Places, subsections B and H are amended as follows:

B. No person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle, except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic or in compliance with the directions of an Code Compliance Officer, Law eEnforcement eOfficer, or traffic control device, in any of the following places:

1. On a sidewalk;

2. On a horse trail;
3. On a bicycle path;
4. In front of a public or private driveway, or in a place that obstructs in any way a public or private driveway;
5. Within an intersection;
6. Within 15 feet of a fire hydrant;
7. On a crosswalk;
8. On a horse crossing area;
9. Within 20 feet of a crosswalk at an intersection;
10. Within 100 feet of any flashing beacon, stop sign, or any traffic-control signal located at the side of a roadway;
11. Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb, or within 30 feet of points on the curb immediately opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless the Wellington Engineer indicates a different length by signs or markings;
12. Within 50 feet of a bridge;
13. Within 20 feet of the driveway entrance to any fire station and on the side of a roadway opposite the entrance of any fire station within 75 feet of said entrance.;
14. Alongside or opposite any street or highway excavation or obstruction when such stopping, standing, or parking would obstruct traffic;
15. On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge of a street;
16. Upon any street or roadway, unless clearly marked by striping and/or signage to permit parking;
17. Upon any bridge or other elevated structure upon a street;
18. At any place where official signs prohibit stopping, standing, or parking.

H. No person shall at any time stop, stand, park or allow to be parked a vehicle on a public or private swale or easement adjacent to a paved or unpaved road or street, or across a public or private sidewalk. This provision shall not apply during a garage sale, "open house", or other special or social event in areas where temporary parking is permitted by the host or neighbors. The foregoing exception does not apply to vacation rentals, as defined by Wellington's Land Development Regulations. Further, parking violations or any other violation of the vacation rental provisions of the Land Development Regulations may be prosecuted as irreparable or irreversible violations.

434
435 Sec. 22-20, Unlawful Parking in Space Designated for Use by Disabled Persons;
436 Responsibility of Owner to comply with State Law, subsection A is amended as follows:
437

438 A. It is unlawful for any person to stop, stand, or park a vehicle within any marked parking
439 space specially designated for use by disabled persons provided in accordance with state
440 law or Wellington ordinance, unless such vehicle displays a disabled person parking permit
441 or license plate issued pursuant to state law, and such vehicle is transporting the person to
442 whom the permit or plate is issued. Whenever an Code Compliance Officer or Law
443 eEnforcement eOfficer finds a vehicle stopped, standing, or parked in violation of this
444 section, that officer shall:

- 445
446 1. Have the vehicle in violation removed to any lawful parking space or facility or require
447 the operator or other person in charge of the vehicle to immediately remove the
448 vehicle from the parking space. Whenever any vehicle is removed by an Code
449 Compliance Officer or Law eEnforcement eOfficer to a lawful parking space or facility,
450 the cost of such removal and parking shall be a lien against the vehicle; and
451
452 2. Charge the operator or other person in charge of the vehicle with a violation of this
453 section, punishable with a minimum mandatory fine of \$250.00.
454

455 Sec 22-21, Abandoned Vehicles on Public and Private Property, subsection A is amended
456 as follows:
457

458 A. *Abandoned Vehicles on Public Property; Authority to Impound.* Any Code Compliance
459 Officer or Law eEnforcement eOfficer is hereby authorized to remove a vehicle from a street
460 to the nearest garage or other place of safety, or a garage designated or maintained by the
461 sheriff's department or by Wellington under the circumstances hereinafter enumerated and
462 subject to the procedures set forth in this article:
463

- 464 1. When a vehicle is left unattended upon any street where such vehicle constitutes an
465 obstruction to traffic;
466
467 2. When a vehicle upon a street constitutes an obstruction to traffic or the person or
468 persons in charge of the vehicle are by physical injury incapacitated to such an extent
469 as to be unable to provide for its custody and removal;
470
471 3. When a vehicle is found being operated on the streets and is not in proper condition;
472
473 4. When a vehicle is left unattended upon a street continuously for more than ~~48~~ 24
474 hours and may be presumed to be abandoned;
475
476 5. When the driver of a vehicle is taken into custody by the police and such vehicle
477 would thereby be left unattended upon a street; or
478
479 6. When removal of a vehicle is necessary in the interest of public safety because of
480 fire, flood, storm, or other emergency reason.
481

Sec. 22-22, Abandoned Vehicle; Procedure for Removal and Destruction, subsections B, C, and D are amended as follows:

- B. Whenever an Code Compliance Officer or Law e~~E~~nforcement e~~O~~fficer ascertains that an abandoned vehicle is present on public property contrary to section 22-21 of this Code, they shall cause a notice to be placed upon such abandoned vehicle in substantially the following form:

NOTICE TO THE OWNER AND ALL PERSONS INTERESTED IN THE ATTACHED VEHICLE

THIS VEHICLE, TO WIT: *(Setting forth brief description)* LOCATED AT *(Setting forth a brief description)* IS UNLAWFULLY UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT *(Setting forth brief description of location)* AND MUST BE REMOVED WITHIN FIVE (5) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE; OTHERWISE IT SHALL BE PRESUMED TO BE AN ABANDONED VEHICLE AND WILL BE REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW.

You are notified that you may show cause why the above vehicle should not be removed as an abandoned vehicle by written request for a pre-taking hearing to be held before the Village Manager of Wellington, or his designee, at 12300 Forest Hill Boulevard, Wellington, Florida 33414. You must make such a request for a pre-taking hearing by delivering a written request for a hearing to the Wellington Clerk within five (5) days of the posting of this notice, or by 5:00 p.m. on _____.

Failure to request a hearing or failure to remove this vehicle if so ordered by the Village Manager or his designee within 48 hours of said hearing will result in removal by Wellington.

DATED this _____ (setting forth the date of posting of notice).

Signed (setting forth name, title, address, and telephone number of ~~enforcement~~ officer).

Such notice shall be not less than eight (8) inches by 10 inches and shall be sufficiently weatherproof to withstand normal exposure to the elements.

- C. The Code Compliance Officer or Law e~~E~~nforcement e~~O~~fficer shall also make a reasonable effort to ascertain the name and address of the owner of the abandoned vehicle, and if such address is reasonably available to the ~~enforcement~~ officer, they shall mail a copy of such notice to the owner on or before the date of posting.
- D. If, at the end of five (5) days after the posting of such notice, or 48 hours after the pre-taking hearing, whichever occurs later, the owner or any person interested in the abandoned vehicle described in such notice has not removed the abandoned vehicle from public property, or shown reasonable cause for failure to do so, then the Code Compliance Officer or Law e~~E~~nforcement e~~O~~fficer may cause the abandoned vehicle to be removed and either stored, destroyed, used by Wellington for its own purposes, traded to another unit of local government or state agency, donated to a charitable organization, or sold. The salvage value, if any, of such abandoned vehicle that is destroyed shall be retained by Wellington to

be applied against the cost of removal and destruction thereof, unless the costs of removal and destruction are paid by the owner as provided in subsection (e), in which case the salvage value may be deposited in Wellington's general funds.

Sec. 22-23, Reacquisition by Owner; Procedure, is amended as follows:

If the Code Compliance Officer or Law eEnforcement eOfficer determines that the abandoned vehicle has sufficient value to justify its storage, the owner of the vehicle may regain possession of the stored vehicle by making application therefore within two (2) months after its receipt of notification by Wellington that the vehicle is in storage and paying Wellington all costs of removal, plus storage charges, plus all fines imposed upon the owner for violation of this chapter. If the Code Compliance Officer or Law eEnforcement eOfficer determines that the abandoned vehicle should be destroyed, used by Wellington for its own purposes, traded to another unit of local government or state agency, donated to a charitable organization, or sold, the owner will be notified by certified mail, and the vehicle may be destroyed, traded, or otherwise disposed of 30 days after expiration of the owner's two (2) month opportunity to reacquire the vehicle. If Wellington sells the vehicle, monies received must be used to pay towing, storage, and any of the costs Wellington incurs related to the vehicle. Any and all surplus monies remaining after payment of expenses shall be paid into the general fund.

Sec. 22-26, Administrative Appeal of Parking Violation Citation, subsection A(3) is amended as follows:

3. Any person wishing to contest a parking violation issued by ~~the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office~~ a Law Enforcement Officer and processed by the Palm Beach County Clerk of Court shall contact the Clerk of Court within 30 days of the date the citation was issued. Failure to contest such violation by way of the above procedure shall constitute an admission by the violator that the infraction was committed and will operate as a waiver of the right to a hearing on the issue.

Sec. 22-28, Safety Helmet Required for Riding Horses and Other Equine Animals, subsection E is amended as follows:

- E. Any person who violates this section may be issued a citation and fine of \$25.00 by an Code Compliance Officer or Law eEnforcement eOfficer.

Sec. 22-31, Golf Cart Operation and Equipment, subsections D and K are amended as follows:

- D. Age: Pursuant to s. 316.212, F.S., and effective on and after October 1, 2023, aA golf cart may be operated on a designated Wellington road by a person:
 1. Who is at least 14 years old if they possess a valid form of government-issued photographic identification; or
 2. Who is under 18 years old if they possess a valid learner's driver license or valid driver license, pursuant to s. 316.212, F.S.

A golf cart may only be operated on a designated multi-modal pathway by a person with a

valid learner's driver license or valid driver license.

- K. ~~Insurance: The owner of the golf cart operated pursuant to this article must maintain golf cart liability insurance insuring against bodily injury and damage to property with minimum limits of \$25,000 per person and \$50,000 per accident, plus \$10,000 for property damage. Such insurance must be in full force and effect at all times when the golf cart is operated on designated Wellington roads and designated multi-modal pathways.~~

Sec. 22-34, Enforcement; Penalties, is amended as follows:

- A. Violations of this article may be enforced by the ~~Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office~~Law Enforcement Officers. A violation of this article is a civil infraction punishable by civil penalty in the amounts set forth below:

First Violation:	Warning
Second Violation:	\$50
Third Violation (and every violation thereafter):	\$100

~~With the exception of the penalties set forth above, a citation issued pursuant to this section shall comply with the Supplemental Code Compliance Procedures set forth in Chapter 2, Article IV of this Code and may be contested in the county court as set forth therein.~~

- B. When applicable, violations of this article may be enforced by the ~~Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office~~Law Enforcement Officers through the issuance of a Uniform Traffic Citation pursuant to Florida law.
- C. The enforcement provisions of this section are supplemental in nature and are not intended to prohibit ~~the Wellington~~ from seeking any other remedy available at law or in equity.

Table B is repealed and replaced as follows:

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
120th Ave S	Areaca Dr	Block Island Rd
125th Ave S	Aster Ave	Bluebell Ct
128th Ter S	Autumn Ave	Blueberry Dr
130th Ave S	Azure Ave	Boeing Ct
140th Ave S	Azure Ct	Bolton Ct
160th Trl S	Baltrusol Pl	Bottlebrush Ct
40th St S	Barberry Ct	Boundary Tree Ln
50th St S	Barberry Dr	Brae Burn Pl
52nd Pl S	Barefoot Lake Dr	Brampton Cv
55th St S	Barnstaple Cir	Branding Iron Ct
57th Pl S	Barnstormer Ct	Brier Patch Ct
60th St S	Barrington Woods Dr	Brier Patch Trl
Acme Rd	Basswood Pl	Brightstone St
Adonider Ln	Bedford Mews Dr	Brightwood Way
Alder Ln	Bellanca Ln	Britten Ln

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
Aldsworth Ct	Belmont Trce	Brixham St
Amaryllis Ct	Belmore Ct	Broadleaf Ct
Amesbury Cir	Belmore Ter	Buckland Ct
Amesbury Ct	Bent Creek Rd	Buckland Ct E
Angelica Ct	Big Cone Ct	Buckland St
Anhinga Dr	Birkdale Dr	Callington Dr
Appaloosa Trl	Black Willow Ln	Canter Way
Arcadia Dr	Blackberry Dr	Caraway Ct
Carlton St	Elgin Ct	Guilford Way
Carnation Ct	Emmelman Rd	Halter Rd
Carriage Ln	Enstrom Rd	Hawker Ln
Cedar Bluff Pl	Equestrian Way	Haworth St
Cessna Way	Essex Dr	Hawthorne Pl
Chancellor Dr	Etna Dr	Haymarket Ct
Chandelle Pl	Exeter Ln	Heartwood Pl
Chappard Ct	Exotica Ln	Hempstead St
Chapparel Way	Fairdale Way	Hickory Trl
Chatsworth Village Dr	Fairfield Ct	Hiller St
Chelmsford St	Fairlane Farms Rd	Hollyhock Rd
Cherry Ln	Fallview Way	Horseshoe Tree
Cindy Circle Ln	Farmington Ave	Hull Ct
Cindy Dr	Farmington Cir	Huntington Dr
Citrus Pl	Farmington Ct	Huntley Way
Clydesdale Ave	Farrier Pl	Hyacinth Ct
Gold Springs Ct	Fawnwood Pl	Hyacinth Pl
Columbine Ave	Firethorn Dr	Indian Mound Rd
Corallita Ct	Firewood Ct	Indigo Ave
Coralwood Ct	Flora Ln	Inverness Cir
Cornflower Ct	Folkestone Cir	Ishnala Cir
Cosmos Ct	Folkestone Ct	Ishnala Ct
Country Wood Ct	Forester Ct	Isles View Dr
Cranberry Ct	Foresteria Ave	Ivy Dr
Crassula Ct	Fortune Cir	Jackpine St
Crimson Ln	Fortune Way	Jamboree Ct
Crocus Ct	Galloway Trl	Jonquil Ct
Cromer Ct	Garwood Ct	Jonquil Pl
Crowberry Ct	Geranium Pl	Juniper Pl
Daffodil Dr	Gingerwood Ln	Ken Adams Way
De Havilland Ct	Gloucester Ct	King Ter
Deerwood Ct	Gold Piece Trl	Kinglet Ter
Dollarspot Ct	Goldenrod Rd	Kingsbury Ct
Donlin Dr	Goodwood Ter	Kingsbury Dr
Dorchester Pl	Gracida St	Kingsbury Ter
Doubletree Cir	Grantham Ct	Kingsway Rd
Doubletree Trl	Grantham Dr	Knotty Wood Ln
Dovedale Ct	Gray Mare Way	La Mirada Cir
Dracena Dr	Greenbriar Cir	Lacewood Ln
Draft Horse Ln	Greenleaf Ln	Lantern Tree Ln
Dunster Ct	Greentree Dr	Larch Way

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
E Rambling Dr	Greentree Trl	Larkspur Ln
Earhart Pl	Grumman Ct	Laurel Trl
Easthampton Cir	Guava Ct	Laurel Valley Cir
Edgefield Rd	Guildford St	Lavender Ln
Elder Ct	Guilford Cir	Leeds Ct
Lemongrass Ln	Peconic Ct	Santa Clara Trl
Lewes St	Peel Ct	Sawgrass Ct
Lilac Pl	Pelham Rd	Scarborough Ter
Lily Ct	Penhale Ct	Schweizer Ct
Lindbergh Ln	Peppertree Ct	Sea Lavender Ter
Lindsey Ct	Periwinkle Pl	Seaford Dr
Little Ranches Trl	Petrel Rd	Shawmut Ct
Lockheed Ter	Pine Valley Dr	Sheffield Ct
Longlea Ter	Pineacre Ct	Sheffield St
Lotus Ln	Pineacre Ln	Sheffield Woods Dr
Lynton Cir	Pinetta Cir	Shower Tree Way
Marble Canyon Dr	Pintail Dr	Silverbell Ln
Margate Pl	Pinto Cir	Skipton Ave
Marigold Dr	Piper Way	Snapdragon Dr
Mayview Way	Pipit Ct	Snowberry Dr
Meadow Ave	Portland Ave	Softwood Ct
Meadow Wood Dr	Portland Ct	South Shore Blvd
Merion Ct	Primrose Ln	Southport Ct
Midpines Ter	Quercus Ct	Spanish Oak Way
Milford Ct	Quercus Ln	Springhill Ct
Montauk Dr	Raintree Ln	Springwood Pl
Moonflower Cir	Rambling Drive Cir	Spur Close
Morgan Close	Ranchwood Ct	Squire Dr
Morning Glory Dr	Randi Dr	St Davids Ct
Mulberry Pl	Reading Ter	St Davids Way
Mystic Ct	Red Pine Trl	Staghorn Ct
Mystic Way	Redondo Way	Staghorn St
Newhaven Ave	Riverside Cir	Staimford Cir
Newton Pl	Roan Ct	Staimford Ct
Niantic Ter	Rolling Meadows Cir	Staimford Dr
Northampton Ter	Rolling Rock Pl	Stapleton Way
Northumberland Cir	Rose Ct	Stirrup Ln
Northumberland Ct	Rosewood Ln	Stone Pine Way
Norwick St	Rowayton Cir	Stratford St
Oatland Ct	Royal Fern Dr	Suellen Cir
Old Country Rd N	Rudder Cv	Sugar Pine Trl
Old Country Rd S	Rye Ter	Sulky Way
Old Cypress Trl	S Crown Way	Summerwood Cir
Oleaster Ave	S Rambling Dr	Sunflower Ct
Oneida Ter	Sachem Head Ter	Sunward St
Orchid Ct	Sage Ave	Sycamore Ln
Ousley Farms Rd	Sailboat Cir	Take Off Pl
Pacer Cir	Samoset Ct	Tamarack Way
Paddock Dr	Sanderling Dr	Tanbark Trl

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
Palm Beach Point Blvd	Sandy Pine Ct	Teakwood Ct
Pampas Way	Sannenwood Ln	Tecoma Dr
Torn Ct	Wareham Ct	Windsock Way
The 12th Fairway	Warm Springs Ter	Windtree Way
Timber Pine Trl	Weatherly Rd	Wisteria St
Torchwood Ct	Werwood Ct	Wither Close
Tornelia Ln	Westbury Close	Wood Dale Ter
Torrington Ave	Westhall Pl	Wood Row Way
Trace Way	Westhampton Cir	Woodmar Ct
Treehaven Ct	Westport Cir	Woods Dr
Trotter Ct	Whimbrel Rd	Wranglewood Dr
Tulip Ln	Whitby St	Wrotham Ter
Tumbleweed Ct	White Pine Dr	Wychmere Ter
Turf Ln	Whitemarsh Dr	Wyndcliff Dr
Turnstone Dr	Whitney Way	Yarmouth Ave
Tylerwood Ct	Widgeon Rd	Yarmouth Ct
Velda Way	Wild Pine Rd	Yarmouth Dr
Veronica Ct	Wiltshire Village Dr	York Ct
Voyageurs Pl	Windflower Ct	
W Rambling Dr	Window Rock Dr	

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
<u>120th Ave S</u>	<u>Firewood Ct</u>	<u>Piper Way</u>
<u>125th Ave S</u>	<u>Flora Ln</u>	<u>Pipit Ct</u>
<u>128th Ter S</u>	<u>Folkestone Cir</u>	<u>Portland Ave</u>
<u>130th Ave S</u>	<u>Folkestone Ct</u>	<u>Portland Ct</u>
<u>140th Ave S</u>	<u>Forester Ct</u>	<u>Primrose Ln</u>
<u>160th Trl S</u>	<u>Foresteria Ave</u>	<u>Quercus Ct</u>
<u>40th St S</u>	<u>Fortune Cir</u>	<u>Quercus Ln</u>
<u>50th St S</u>	<u>Fortune Way</u>	<u>Raintree Ln</u>
<u>52nd Pl S</u>	<u>Galloway Trl</u>	<u>Rambling Drive Cir</u>
<u>55th St S</u>	<u>Garwood Ct</u>	<u>Ranchwood Ct</u>
<u>57th Pl S</u>	<u>Geranium Pl</u>	<u>Randi Dr</u>
<u>60th St S</u>	<u>Gingerwood Ln</u>	<u>Reading Ter</u>
<u>Acme Rd</u>	<u>Gloucester Ct</u>	<u>Red Pine Trl</u>
<u>Adonider Ln</u>	<u>Gold Piece Trl</u>	<u>Redondo Way</u>
<u>Alder Ln</u>	<u>Goldenrod Rd</u>	<u>Riverside Cir</u>
<u>Aldsworth Ct</u>	<u>Goodwood Ter</u>	<u>Roan Ct</u>
<u>Amaryllis Ct</u>	<u>Gracida St</u>	<u>Rolling Meadows Cir</u>
<u>Amesbury Cir</u>	<u>Grantham Ct</u>	<u>Rolling Rock Pl</u>
<u>Amesbury Ct</u>	<u>Grantham Dr</u>	<u>Rose Ct</u>
<u>Angelica Ct</u>	<u>Gray Mare Way</u>	<u>Rosewood Ln</u>
<u>Anhinga Dr</u>	<u>Greenbriar Cir</u>	<u>Rowayton Cir</u>
<u>Appaloosa Trl</u>	<u>Greenleaf Ln</u>	<u>Royal Fern Dr</u>
<u>Arcadia Dr</u>	<u>Greentree Dr</u>	<u>Rudder Cv</u>

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
<u>Areaca Dr</u>	<u>Greentree Trl</u>	<u>Rye Ter</u>
<u>Aster Ave</u>	<u>Grumman Ct</u>	<u>S Crown Way</u>
<u>Autumn Ave</u>	<u>Guava Ct</u>	<u>S Rambling Dr</u>
<u>Azure Ave</u>	<u>Guildford St</u>	<u>Sachem Head Ter</u>
<u>Azure Ct</u>	<u>Guilford Cir</u>	<u>Sage Ave</u>
<u>Baltrusol Pl</u>	<u>Guilford Way</u>	<u>Sailboat Cir</u>
<u>Barberry Ct</u>	<u>Halter Rd</u>	<u>Samoset Ct</u>
<u>Barberry Dr</u>	<u>Hawker Ln</u>	<u>Sanderling Dr</u>
<u>Barefoot Lake Dr</u>	<u>Haworth St</u>	<u>Sandy Pine Ct</u>
<u>Barnstaple Cir</u>	<u>Hawthorne Pl</u>	<u>Sannenwood Ln</u>
<u>Barnstormer Ct</u>	<u>Haymarket Ct</u>	<u>Santa Clara Trl</u>
<u>Barrington Woods Dr</u>	<u>Heartwood Pl</u>	<u>Sawgrass Ct</u>
<u>Basswood Pl</u>	<u>Hempstead St</u>	<u>Scarborough Ter</u>
<u>Bedford Mews Dr</u>	<u>Hickory Trl</u>	<u>Schweizer Ct</u>
<u>Bellanca Ln</u>	<u>Hiller St</u>	<u>Sea Lavender Ter</u>
<u>Belmont Trce</u>	<u>Hollyhock Rd</u>	<u>Seaford Dr</u>
<u>Belmore Ct</u>	<u>Horseshoe Trce</u>	<u>Shawmut Ct</u>
<u>Belmore Ter</u>	<u>Hull Ct</u>	<u>Sheffield Ct</u>
<u>Bent Creek Rd</u>	<u>Huntington Dr</u>	<u>Sheffield St</u>
<u>Big Cone Ct</u>	<u>Huntley Way</u>	<u>Sheffield Woods Dr</u>
<u>Birkdale Dr</u>	<u>Hyacinth Ct</u>	<u>Shower Tree Way</u>
<u>Black Willow Ln</u>	<u>Hyacinth Pl</u>	<u>Silverbell Ln</u>
<u>Blackberry Dr</u>	<u>Indian Mound Rd</u>	<u>Skipton Ave</u>
<u>Block Island Rd</u>	<u>Indigo Ave</u>	<u>Snapdragon Dr</u>
<u>Bluebell Ct</u>	<u>Inverness Cir</u>	<u>Snowberry Dr</u>
<u>Blueberry Dr</u>	<u>Ishnala Cir</u>	<u>Softwood Ct</u>
<u>Boeing Ct</u>	<u>Ishnala Ct</u>	<u>South Shore Blvd</u>
<u>Bolton Ct</u>	<u>Isles View Dr</u>	<u>Southport Ct</u>
<u>Bottlebrush Ct</u>	<u>Ivy Dr</u>	<u>Spanish Oak Way</u>
<u>Boundary Tree Ln</u>	<u>Jackpine St</u>	<u>Springhill Ct</u>
<u>Brae Burn Pl</u>	<u>Jamboree Ct</u>	<u>Springwood Pl</u>
<u>Brampton Cv</u>	<u>Jonquil Ct</u>	<u>Spur Close</u>
<u>Branding Iron Ct</u>	<u>Jonquil Pl</u>	<u>Squire Dr</u>
<u>Brier Patch Ct</u>	<u>Juniper Pl</u>	<u>St Davids Ct</u>
<u>Brier Patch Trl</u>	<u>Ken Adams Way</u>	<u>St Davids Way</u>
<u>Brightstone St</u>	<u>King Ter</u>	<u>Staghorn Ct</u>
<u>Brightwood Way</u>	<u>Kinglet Ter</u>	<u>Staghorn St</u>
<u>Britten Ln</u>	<u>Kingsbury Ct</u>	<u>Staimford Cir</u>
<u>Brixham St</u>	<u>Kingsbury Dr</u>	<u>Staimford Ct</u>
<u>Broadleaf Ct</u>	<u>Kingsbury Ter</u>	<u>Staimford Dr</u>
<u>Buckland Ct</u>	<u>Kingsway Rd</u>	<u>Stapleton Way</u>
<u>Buckland Ct E</u>	<u>Knotty Wood Ln</u>	<u>Stirrup Ln</u>
<u>Buckland St</u>	<u>La Mirada Cir</u>	<u>Stone Pine Way</u>
<u>Callington Dr</u>	<u>Lacewood Ln</u>	<u>Stratford St</u>
<u>Canter Way</u>	<u>Lantern Tree Ln</u>	<u>Suellen Cir</u>
<u>Caraway Ct</u>	<u>Larch Way</u>	<u>Sugar Pine Trl</u>
<u>Carlton St</u>	<u>Larkspur Ln</u>	<u>Sulky Way</u>
<u>Carnation Ct</u>	<u>Laurel Trl</u>	<u>Summerwood Cir</u>
<u>Carriage Ln</u>	<u>Laurel Valley Cir</u>	<u>Sunflower Ct</u>

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
<u>Cedar Bluff Pl</u>	<u>Lavender Ln</u>	<u>Sunward St</u>
<u>Cessna Way</u>	<u>Leeds Ct</u>	<u>Sycamore Ln</u>
<u>Chancellor Dr</u>	<u>Lemongrass Ln</u>	<u>Take Off Pl</u>
<u>Chandelle Pl</u>	<u>Lewes St</u>	<u>Tamarack Way</u>
<u>Chappard Ct</u>	<u>Lilac Pl</u>	<u>Tanbark Trl</u>
<u>Chapparel Way</u>	<u>Lily Ct</u>	<u>Teakwood Ct</u>
<u>Chatsworth Village Dr</u>	<u>Lindbergh Ln</u>	<u>Tecoma Dr</u>
<u>Chelmsford St</u>	<u>Lindsey Ct</u>	<u>Tern Ct</u>
<u>Cherry Ln</u>	<u>Little Ranches Trl</u>	<u>The 12th Fairway</u>
<u>Cindy Circle Ln</u>	<u>Lockheed Ter</u>	<u>Timber Pine Trl</u>
<u>Cindy Dr</u>	<u>Longlea Ter</u>	<u>Torchwood Ct</u>
<u>Citrus Pl</u>	<u>Lotus Ln</u>	<u>Tornelia Ln</u>
<u>Clydesdale Ave</u>	<u>Lynton Cir</u>	<u>Torrington Ave</u>
<u>Cold Springs Ct</u>	<u>Marble Canyon Dr</u>	<u>Trace Way</u>
<u>Columbine Ave</u>	<u>Margate Pl</u>	<u>Treehaven Ct</u>
<u>Corallita Ct</u>	<u>Marigold Dr</u>	<u>Trotter Ct</u>
<u>Coralwood Ct</u>	<u>Mayview Way</u>	<u>Tulip Ln</u>
<u>Cornflower Ct</u>	<u>Meadow Ave</u>	<u>Tumbleweed Ct</u>
<u>Cosmos Ct</u>	<u>Meadow Wood Dr</u>	<u>Turf Ln</u>
<u>Country Wood Ct</u>	<u>Merion Ct</u>	<u>Turnstone Dr</u>
<u>Cranberry Ct</u>	<u>Midpines Ter</u>	<u>Tylerwood Ct</u>
<u>Crassula Ct</u>	<u>Milford Ct</u>	<u>Velda Way</u>
<u>Crimson Ln</u>	<u>Montauk Dr</u>	<u>Veronica Ct</u>
<u>Crocus Ct</u>	<u>Moonflower Cir</u>	<u>Voyageurs Pl</u>
<u>Cromer Ct</u>	<u>Morgan Close</u>	<u>W Rambling Dr</u>
<u>Crowberry Ct</u>	<u>Morning Glory Dr</u>	<u>Wareham Ct</u>
<u>Daffodil Dr</u>	<u>Mulberry Pl</u>	<u>Warm Springs Ter</u>
<u>De Havilland Ct</u>	<u>Mystic Ct</u>	<u>Weatherly Rd</u>
<u>Deerwood Ct</u>	<u>Mystic Way</u>	<u>Werwood Ct</u>
<u>Dollarspot Ct</u>	<u>Newhaven Ave</u>	<u>Westbury Close</u>
<u>Donlin Dr</u>	<u>Newton Pl</u>	<u>Westhall Pl</u>
<u>Dorchester Pl</u>	<u>Niantic Ter</u>	<u>Westhampton Cir</u>
<u>Doubletree Cir</u>	<u>Northampton Ter</u>	<u>Westport Cir</u>
<u>Doubletree Trl</u>	<u>Northumberland Cir</u>	<u>Whimbrel Rd</u>
<u>Dovedale Ct</u>	<u>Northumberland Ct</u>	<u>Whitby St</u>
<u>Dracena Dr</u>	<u>Norwick St</u>	<u>White Pine Dr</u>
<u>Draft Horse Ln</u>	<u>Oatland Ct</u>	<u>Whitemarsh Dr</u>
<u>Dunster Ct</u>	<u>Old Country Rd N</u>	<u>Whitney Way</u>
<u>E Rambling Dr</u>	<u>Old Country Rd S</u>	<u>Widgeon Rd</u>
<u>Earhart Pl</u>	<u>Old Cypress Trl</u>	<u>Wild Pine Rd</u>
<u>Easthampton Cir</u>	<u>Oleaster Ave</u>	<u>Wiltshire Village Dr</u>
<u>Edgefield Rd</u>	<u>Oneida Ter</u>	<u>Windflower Ct</u>
<u>Elder Ct</u>	<u>Orchid Ct</u>	<u>Window Rock Dr</u>
<u>Elgin Ct</u>	<u>Ousley Farms Rd</u>	<u>Windsock Way</u>
<u>Emmelman Rd</u>	<u>Pacer Cir</u>	<u>Windtree Way</u>
<u>Enstrom Rd</u>	<u>Paddock Dr</u>	<u>Wisteria St</u>
<u>Equestrian Way</u>	<u>Palm Beach Point Blvd</u>	<u>Wither Close</u>
<u>Essex Dr</u>	<u>Pampas Way</u>	<u>Wood Dale Ter</u>
<u>Etna Dr</u>	<u>Peconic Ct</u>	<u>Wood Row Way</u>

Table B: Streets within Residential Neighborhoods		
<u>Exeter Ln</u>	<u>Peel Ct</u>	<u>Woodmar Ct</u>
<u>Exotica Ln</u>	<u>Pelham Rd</u>	<u>Woods Dr</u>
<u>Fairdale Way</u>	<u>Penhale Ct</u>	<u>Wranglewood Dr</u>
<u>Fairfield Ct</u>	<u>Peppertree Ct</u>	<u>Wrotham Ter</u>
<u>Fairlane Farms Rd</u>	<u>Periwinkle Pl</u>	<u>Wychmere Ter</u>
<u>Fallview Way</u>	<u>Petrel Rd</u>	<u>Wyndcliff Dr</u>
<u>Farmington Ave</u>	<u>Pine Valley Dr</u>	<u>Yarmouth Ave</u>
<u>Farmington Cir</u>	<u>Pineacre Ct</u>	<u>Yarmouth Ct</u>
<u>Farmington Ct</u>	<u>Pineacre Ln</u>	<u>Yarmouth Dr</u>
<u>Farrier Pl</u>	<u>Pinetta Cir</u>	<u>York Ct</u>
<u>Fawnwood Pl</u>	<u>Pintail Dr</u>	
<u>Firethorn Dr</u>	<u>Pinto Cir</u>	

SECTION 8. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance conflict with any section, paragraph, clause or phrase of any prior Wellington Ordinance, Resolution, or Municipal Code provision, in that event the provisions of this Ordinance shall prevail to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 9. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phase of this Ordinance be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or any portion or part thereof, other than the part so declared to be invalid.

SECTION 10. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption of the Village Council following second reading.

PASSED this ____ day of _____ 2023, upon first reading.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of _____ 2023, on second and final reading.

WELLINGTON

FOR AGAINST

BY: _____	_____	_____
Anne Gerwig, Mayor		
_____	_____	_____
Michael J. Napoleone, Vice Mayor		
_____	_____	_____
John T. McGovern, Councilman		
_____	_____	_____
Michael Drahos, Councilman		
_____	_____	_____
Tanya Siskind, Councilwoman		

652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662

ATTEST:

BY: _____
Chevelle D. Addie, Village Clerk

**APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY**

BY: _____
Laurie Cohen, Village Attorney